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Below are the latest Verizon coverage maps. You can see coverage of Verizon 2G (voice calls), 3G (data) and 4G (LTE) as well as Verizon tower locations.

Note: we are continually updating our data set to be more accurate. If you have an Android or iOS device you can help us make the maps even more
accurate (as well as improving your own connection) by downloading the OpenSignal app.

Helena, MT 59601 |
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          (406) 444-2575
HELENA, MONTANA 59620-0135

            (406) 444-2529  FAX

                            TTY Users-Dial 711

JANUARY 30, 2014
STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 14-2965A
TO BE OPENED: FEBRUARY 20, 2014
TITLE: OFFENDER TRACKING SYSTEM
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No1
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Jeannie Lake
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for IFB # 14-2965A

	1. 
	12
	3.0
	Question:  Background. It is a mandatory requirement of this RFP that the OTS use, at a minimum, GPS, cell phone tower tracking via CDMA with the capacity for triangulation….

1. It is our understanding that the Triangulation technology specified above is only offered by Sprint on the CDMA Network.  As shown on the embedded Sprint coverage map obtained from Sprint’s Website, Sprint has no towers and no coverage in the State of Montana, offering service only via roaming; therefore, Sprint triangulation (also known as AFLT) cannot not benefit the Montana DOC, and, even if triangulation were offered by Verizon (also on CDMA), Montana has large expanses of sparsely populated rural areas where cell towers tend to be located in a linear configuration that parallels major highways and down mountainsides into valleys – topography that actually inhibits triangulation.  
2. A visit to Verizon’s Website yielded the embedded coverage map (below) showing that Verizon doesn’t have any towers in the area either and Verizon only claims to have limited coverage in Montana via roaming.  Where does all that Montana roaming come from without Sprint or Verizon towers?  

3. A visit to the AT&T Website reveals that AT&T does offer cellular data coverage in the State of Montana.  In fact, AT&T’s coverage on the GSM Network is consistent throughout Montana, as indicated in the embedded coverage map.  The State Procurement Bureau may be unaware that AT&T offers location-based tracking that can also be provided as a supplement to GPS tracking.  Through this technology we can identify and map the nearest cell tower to a GPS device, tracking the device’s vicinity as the tower changes.  While cellular triangulation is a great technology, it certainly does not work without cell towers and the cell towers in Montana are on the GSM Network. 

In accordance with Section 1.4.1 on Page 5, we respectfully request that the State of Montana strike this mandatory requirement on the basis that it is unduly restrictive; precluding offerors that provide cellular communication on the GSM Network from responding, which discourages open competition and is contrary to the public safety.
In the interest of encouraging “fair and open competition” (2.2), Would the State allow the option of a location-based (LBS) tracking system as an alternative to the CDMA requirement?

Answer:  
Triangulation is not a service provided for by the carrier itself.  It is our understanding that cellular triangulation works in a similar manner as GPS and is meant to supplement GPS location services in this request.  It is up to the equipment (or tracking) device itself to implement triangulation.  Typically, this is facilitated through timing signals as does GPS location technology.  For example, in GPS technology, it is the Garmin receiver itself that calculates triangulations.  Not the individual GPS satellites itself.  That’s why you need at a minimum of three satellites in view of the receiver to perform that triangulation.  Similarly, three cell towers would have to be within reception range of the transceiver to get a reliable location. No changes will be made to the RFP.
CDMA is not only required for location services.  It is also required for the general reporting of location information reported by the on device GPS.  CDMA is required because GSM does not provide for the same real world coverage that CDMA does in Montana. No changes will be made to the RFP.

	2. 
	16
	3.4.1
	Question:  
         Location Technologies.  It is a mandatory requirement of this RFP that the OTS use, at a minimum, GPS, cell phone tower/landline tracking via CDMA with the capacity for triangulation, and…  In accordance with Section 1.4.1 on Page 5, we respectfully request that the State of Montana strike this mandatory requirement on the basis that it is unduly restrictive; precluding offerors that provide cellular communication on the GSM Network from responding, which discourages open competition and is contrary to the public safety. 
         In the interest of encouraging “fair and open competition” (2.2), Would the State allow the option of a location-based (LBS) tracking system as an alternative to the CDMA requirement?
Answer:  
Accepting “LBS” Location based system is tremendously vague.  It is unclear as to which technology is requested.  GPS (already required), Cell, TV Signal, etc.  LBS is already required generally in this RFP and the Department is requiring certain technical implementations based on our user experience.

	3. 
	12
	3.0
	Question:  
         Background. RFP states “It is a mandatory requirement of this RFP that the OTS use, at a minimum, GPS, cell phone tower tracking via CDMA with the capacity for triangulation, and an RF Beacon per unit. The RF Beacon will signal via cell phone tower and/or landline tracking.”  The majority of GPS providers use the GSM network to communicate offender tracking data. In the interest of fair and open competition and competitive pricing, is the State willing to accept an OTS that uses the GSM network with comparable coverage? The Wireless Data Coverage maps (below) from Verizon (CDMA) and AT&T (GSM) show comparable coverage for both networks.

Answer: 
CDMA is required because, in the Department’s experience, CDMA has far better coverage on average across the state. The coverage maps may show one thing and is marketing material; however, our experience with offender tracking and general cell phone usage has entirely different results.





	4. 
	12
16
	3.0
3.4.1
	Question:  
        Background. The RFP refers to an RF Beacon and that it is mandatory with the GPS OTS. It states that “the RF Beacon will signal via cell tower and/or landline.” There are two RF beacons that act as RF receivers that receive RF signals from the One Piece GPS and when in violation (beacon is not receiving RF transmit anymore – home curfew violation) the GPS device recognizes that and sends a violation across the cellular model in the GPS device. The beacon will not communicate through a land line or cellular directly. Is that allowable?

Answer:  
        Yes-MDOC would agree to either the RF units or the GPS devices being able to call out alerts.  

	5. 
	13
16

17


	3.1.4

3.5

3.7
	Question:  
        Scope of Services. Can the contract be a reseller of equipment and describe the security, data center and infrastructure of the equipment provider while the offeror provides services like training, support of products (RMA, ordering, etc.) and offender fee collection?

Answer:  
          Yes.

	6. 
	31
	18.1
	Question:  
       Termination for Cause. It is unusual for a public safety products and services to be terminated immediately. Is this after the vendor has the ability to cure the issue that is causing the termination?  

Answer:  
       Yes-The contract allows for termination for clause with notice to cure requirement in Section 18.2.  The State’s written notice must demand performance of the stated failure within a specified period not less than 30 days.

	7. 
	12
	3.0
	Question:  
        Background. RFP indicates that “MDOC will be responsible for equipment installation and removal”. Would the State consider a full-service proposal whereby installation, removal, and monitoring were done through the provider, as a cost saving measure that would also free up MDOC agents to focus on other aspects of their already overwhelming duties?

Answer: 
         No, it is important for Officers to monitor their offenders on GPS monitoring and understand how the monitors are installed and removed.
Question:  
        Should this be submitted as a separate proposal or should full-service price points be added as an addendum to a single proposal?

Answer: 
         N/A due to the above answer. 

	8. 
	17
	3.6.9
	Question:  
        Self-Pay that allows . . . RFP states, “It is a mandatory requirement that the contractor is responsible for invoicing and collecting payments from the offender . . . MDOC will pay the balance due and proceed with a hearings officer on a case by case basis to collect the fees from the offender.” Is this to say the offender will be responsible for all costs associated with monitoring (equipment rental, monitoring fees, etc.) and MDOC will pay whatever the offender does not? Or is the provider expected to invoice the offender only for the Self-Pay portion of the costs and invoice the remaining balance to MDOC separately?

Answer:  
        The offender is responsible for all of their monitoring costs with MDOC paying the balance of what the offender does not pay.
Question:   
        If the provider is expected to invoice the offender directly for only the Self-Pay portion, it is respectfully recommended that the scoring of the cost proposal be amended to exclude the Self-Pay Program fee as this fee will not be paid by the State and therefore should not be included into the cost projections associated with the proposal and should not be scored as such.

Answer:  
          N/A.

	9. 
	6
	1.5.3
	Question:  
        Mandatory Requirements.  To be eligible for consideration, an offeror must meet all mandatory requirements as listed in Section 3.0 (CDMA), 3.1.4, 3.4.1, 3.6.9 (self-pay). Please confirm that only the requirements listed in Sections 3.1.4, 3.4.1, and 3.6.9 are mandatory?

Answer:  
        The offeror must meet all mandatory requirements as listed in Section 3.0 (CDMA), 3.1.4, 3.4.1, 3.6.9 (self-pay).

	10. 
	12
	3.0
	Question:  
        Background.  Currently MDOC has 80-140 active offender tracking units in service. 

        How many activated GPS devices did the MDOC have on hand for the month of December 2013?

Answer:  
          123 units were active at any time in December 2013.
Question:   
         How many activated Beacons did the MDOC utilize during the month of December 2013?

Answer:  
         25 beacons were active at any time in December 2013

	11. 
	13
	3.1.4
	Question:   
        Security.  The contractor shall implement and maintain appropriate and effective security controls for the work performed within the scope of the Offender Tracking System contract. As applicable, these controls should be based on the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) information technology security standards, guidelines and specifications. Issues to be addressed in these controls include, but are not limited to:

· Prevention, deterrence, and detection of fraud and abuse.

· Maintenance of privacy, integrity, access, and confidentiality.

· Protection of public property and rights.

· Confidentiality of the Department’s proprietary management and planning information.

· Physical security of facilities, equipment, data, supplies, and documentation.

· Screening and training of personnel.

        It is not apparent how a contractor’s security controls for the work performed within the scope of an Offender Tracking System Contract impacts the protection of public property and rights or confidentiality of the Department’s proprietary management and planning information beyond the scope of privacy protection and limited access as described in the adjacent bullets.  We respectfully request that these two specifications be clarified or stricken from the requirements. 

Answer:  
As Department data is directly entered into offeror’s data system up to and including confidential information, security of said information is paramount.  Security controls ensures background checks of staff are done, access controls are in place, disaster recovery and uptime is ensured, etc.  The Department encourages the offeror to review NIST for further explanation: http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/PubsSPs.html .   This is standard language for all IT services that involve storage of data going forward.

	12. 
	14
	3.1.4
	Question:  Security.  The contractor stores and interfaces with sensitive data that is either input by the users or through interfaces with other state or federal agencies… The reference above is the only specification found in regard to the contractor’s system interfacing with other state or federal agencies.  Since interfacing with other systems can range from simple file uploads to costly software engineering, will the State of Montana please provide a detailed explanation of any and all interfaces the contractor is expected to provide with other systems beyond a Web-based software interface to the host system for State of Montana users?

Answer:  
The services requested in this RFP do not require interfaces to be built to any other systems.  The only interface in reference to this solution would be a web-based interface for end user input.

	13. 
	3
	Instructions to Offerors


	Question:   
        Does Appendix B, Contract have to be signed and returned with the proposal OR only the acknowledgement on page 3?

Answer:  
        Only the acknowledgement on page 3 must be signed.  The contract in Appendix B. is a sample of the contract that will be entered into with MDOC once the contract is awarded.

	14. 
	4
	SCHEDULE OF EVENTS
	Question:  
When are cost proposals to be opened? Are cost proposals evaluated by the 

same or different evaluation committee members?

Answer:  
        Cost proposals will be opened at the same time the RFP responses are opened on Thursday, February 20, 2014.  The evaluation committee is the same for the evaluation of the RFP responses and the cost proposals.

	15. 
	4
	SCHEDULE OF EVENTS
	Question:  Multiple questions here: The State’s answers to vendor questions are vital to proposers and require a minimum of two weeks ample time for proposers to implement the State’s answers into their proposals.  Also, leading vendors will ship proposals overnight to arrive the day before they are due (this is to ensure against delays by shipping carriers).  The schedule in the RFP currently has the posting of final answers and proposal due date separated by only eight business days which is prohibitive to such consideration/incorporation of final answers and advance delivery.  These points made, any advance consideration you may give to amending the schedule to enable at least two (2) full weeks between posting of answers and proposal due date would be appreciated by all leading proposers.  Additionally, Addendum #1 extended the RFP milestones up to and including the proposal due date – Please confirm – Acknowledging Addendum 1extension of the due date, does the State anticipate maintaining the post submittal milestones as originally written in the RFP and, if NOT, will you please advise in advance regarding the new anticipated dates?

Answer:  
        The MDOC plans to adhere to the submittal milestones as originally written in the RFP. The addendum referenced in the question relates to a previous solicitation, so does not apply.

	16. 
	8
	2.3.1
	Question:  
        Multiple questions here: Will the State make access available to the electronic copies of proposals submitted in response to 1.6.5 OR only hardcopies?  If so, is remote access/delivery of these electronic copies provided and by what means (Example: Posting on state website?  Delivery via email? Other?)

Answer:  
        The Contracts Officer will supply electronic copies of the offeros submitted upon request.  The electronic copies will be provided via US mail on a CD.

	17. 
	9
	2.4.2
	Question:  
        This item calls out “If an offeror is found nonresponsible, the procurement officer will notify the offeror by mail.” When and by what method (US Mail? Email? Other) will this occur?

Answer:  
        U.S. Mail after the RFP response due date.

	18. 
	9
	2.4.3 & 2.4.7
	Question:  
        Multiple questions here: These items call out “The evaluator/evaluation committee may initiate discussion, negotiation, or a best and final offer.” Does the State anticipate conducting “negotiations, or a best and final offers” as part of this RFP? If so, when is each anticipated to occur – before or after tier 2 evals have been completed?

Answer:  
        The State does not anticipate conducting negotiations or a best and final offer.

	19. 
	9
	2.4.3
	Question:  
        Multiple questions here: This item calls out “If an evaluation committee meets to deliberate and evaluate the proposals, the public may attend and observe the evaluation committee deliberations.” How would members of the public become informed in advance of committee meetings?  If via posting, will you please provide the specific details regarding such posting location(s)?

Answer:  
        All public meetings are posted on the following website: http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/onestop/Meetings.aspx 

	20. 
	10
	2.4.4


	Question:  
        Multiple questions here: These sections speak to “discussion” and “negotiation”. By this wording does this confirm that “discussion” and “negotiation” are open to all participants in the Tier 2 evaluations?  Upon the basis that the RFP identifies that cost evaluations only occur in Tier 1, if negotiations occur during Tier 2 Oral/Product presentations, how would such price/cost negotiations be scored?

Answer:  
        Discussion and negotiation will occur only if requested by the State.  The State does not anticipate conducting price/cost negotiations during the oral/product presentations.

	21. 
	13
	3.0 
	Question:  
        This item calls out “The Montana Department of Corrections (State or MDOC) is seeking a contractor to provide an Offender Tracking Device and System (OTS or System), to track designated offenders under the supervision of MDOC.” Upon the basis that “contractor” is singular, is this indicative that the State will NOT consider making multiple awards for this RFP?

Answer:  
         The MDOC will be making one award for this RFP.

	22. 
	13
	3.1.1
	Question:  
        This item calls out “Offerors must describe their iOS or Android App; include which ones and what versions of the operating systems they are compatible with and how often they are updated.”  Will the State please amend this from a “must” to a “should” requirement as certain leading vendors do NOT require an app rather, they support secure access via standard smart phone browsers without the need for an added app?

Answer:  
        The State will amend this as follows: If offeror has an iOS or Android app they must describe said app to include which ones and what versions of the operating systems they are compatible with and how often they are updated.

	23. 
	15
	3.2.2
	Question:  
        Multiple questions here: What percentage of the overall participants will require officers to receive “Live phone alerts” notification? Additionally, this item calls out “Describe in detail, how users are notified of alerts (mentioned above). Address the following notification methods. MDOC prefers a system  that notifies users automatically, without  the need for human intervention…Live phone alerts”  Does the State consider “SMS/Text” synonymous for “Live phone alerts” notification? 

Answer: 
        Live phone alerts are only necessary if a SMS/Text message failed or was not received (if they have the ability to know that).  MDOC would like to have live phone alerts as an option. Some officer’s prefer them as sometimes it is hard to hear the phone go off at 2 in the morning with a text alert.  A constant phone call would be harder to miss.
Question:  
        If NOT, upon the basis that “Live phone alerts” notification otherwise involves human intervention, will you please confirm that vendors proposing “Live phone alerts” as a manual process (ala monitoring center operator call) will NOT be scored down? 

Answer:  
        Phone alerts through a manual process will NOT be scored down as long as operator calls continue until officer answers the call.   

	24. 
	27
	Appendix B
	Question:  
        Regarding “5.2 Withholding of Payment”, is the State open to amending this as follows?: “5.2 Withholding of Payment.  The State may withhold disputed payments to Contractor under the subject statement of work by providing advance written notice to cure to Contractor or where no statement of work exists, the applicable contract). The withholding may not be greater than, in the aggregate, fifteen percent (15%) of the total value of the subject statement of work or applicable contract. With respect to payments subject to milestone acceptance criteria, the State may withhold payment only for such specific milestone if and until the subject milestone criteria are met. Contractor is not relieved of its performance obligation if such payment(s) is withheld.”

Answer:  
       The State is open to minor modifications, and may review and change this language with the successful offeror.

	25. 
	N/A
	Appendix B
	Question:  
        Upon the basis that Montana has previously participated in the Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA), and cognizant that WSCA-NASPO recently completed an extensive RFP process (#00212 https://fortress.wa.gov/ga/apps/ContractSearch/ContractSummary.aspx?c=00212 ) making multiple awards to multiple vendors for a contract term of up to ten (10) years, for the same technology MDOC is seeking in this RFP, specifically why has Montana elected to issue this RFP and NOT instead acquired GPS technologies and services via WSCA-NASPO contract #00212?

Answer:  
        The MDOC is seeking equipment and services that differs from those currently offered through the WSCA contract.
Question:  
        Will the State consider cancelling RFP 14-2956 rather, adopting/contracting with WSCA- NASPO contract #00212? 

Answer:  
         No.
Question:  
          If NOT, will you please explain why?

Answer:  
        The MDOC is seeking equipment and services that differs from those currently offered through the WSCA contract.

	26. 
	12
	3.0
	Question:  
        Section 3.0 of the RFP specifies a requirement for CDMA with triangulation. Could you confirm whether GSM with triangulation would be acceptable?

Answer:  
         No-GSM with triangulation will not be acceptable.


Vendor IFB Q&A Form

4/12

